ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COWM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
February 17, 2004
11: 03 a. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representati ve Dan (Ogg

Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Kelly Wl f
Representative Les Gara
Representative Mary Kapsner

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 471
"An Act relating to the funding of public education; and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 338
"An Act relating to attendance at public school; and providing
for an effective date.”

- MOVED HB 338 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 353
"An Act relating to jury duty; and anending Rule 15(k), Al aska
Rul es of Adm nistration.”

- MOVED HB 353 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 390
"An Act relating to the required nunber of days in a school
year."

- MOVED HB 390( EDU) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 437

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -1- February 17, 2004



"An Act requiring the Departnment of Education and Early
Devel opnent to gather and report information about the school
attendance status of every child who is a resident of the state
who has been admitted to kindergarten or is of school age."

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 405

"An Act relating to reports on school and school district
performance; and relating to accountability of public schools
and school districts; and providing for an effective date.”

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 471

SHORT TI TLE: | NCREASE AMI' OF BASE STUDENT ALLOCATI ON
REPRESENTATI VE( S) : EDUCATI ON

02/ 16/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H EDU, HES, FIN

02/ 17/ 04 (H EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124
BILL: HB 338

SHORT TI TLE: ENTRY | NTO SCHOOL
REPRESENTATI VE(S) : MCGUI RE

01/ 12/ 04 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (H) EDU, HES

02/ 17/ 04 (H) EDU AT 11:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 353
SHORT TI TLE: JURY DUTY EXEMPTI ON FOR CERTAI N TEACHERS
REPRESENTATI VE(S) : KAPSNER

01/ 12/ 04 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (H) EDU, HES, JUD

02/ 17/ 04 (H EDU AT 11:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 390
SHORT TITLE: LENGTH OF SCHOOL TERM
REPRESENTATI VE(S): GATTO

01/ 20/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 2- February 17, 2004



01/ 20/ 04 (H) EDU, HES, FIN
02/ 17/ 04 (H) EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

EDDI E JEANS, Fi nance Manager

School Finance and Facilities Section

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 471 and answered questions
fromthe commttee.

JOHN ALCANTRA, Government Rel ations Director
NEA Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 471.

RON RUCKER, Presi dent

Cl assi fied Enpl oyees Associ ation

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 471.

KRI'S MOORE

Val | ey Voices for Children

Wasilla, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 471.

JENNI E HAMVOND
Ni ki ski, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 471.

MELODY DOUGLAS, Chief Financial Oficer

Kenai Peninsul a School District

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 471.

ANDI STORY, Board Menber

Juneau School District

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 471.

REPRESENTATI VE LESI L McGUl RE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the sponsor of HB 338.

HEATH HI LYARD, St aff

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 3- February 17, 2004



to Representative Lesil MCuire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions from the nenbers on HB
338.

KEVI N SWEENEY, Legi sl ative Liaison

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions from the nenbers on HB
338.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-10, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR CARL GATTO called the House Special Commttee on Education
nmeeting to order at 11:03 a.m Representatives Gatto, WIson,
Gara, Kapsner, Seaton, and Ogg were present at the call to
order. Representative WIf arrived as the neeting was in
progress.

HB 471-1 NCREASE AMI' OF BASE STUDENT ALLOCATI ON

Number 0070

CHAI R GATTO announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 471, "An Act relating to the funding of public
education; and providing for an effective date.” He asked if
Representative Ogg, Chair of the Subcommttee on Education
Fundi ng, would provide the commttee with the subcommttee's
recommendat i ons.

Number 0099
REPRESENTATI VE OGG told the nenbers that it was an honor to

serve on the subconmttee with Representatives Seaton and Gara.
They did an excellent job in working with this conplex and

difficult subject, he said. Representative Ogg commented that
the subconmittee Ilistened to public testinony during two
meet i ngs. The testinony of school districts around the state

was expressing how the districts' needs had not been net was
very persuasive, he said.

Number 0212

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -4- February 17, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE OGG explained that after taking testinony the
subconm ttee spent tinme discussing how to address education
f undi ng. He remnded the nenbers that in the |ast
[ subcomm ttee] neeting a bill that dealt with Public Enployees’
Retirement System (PERS) and Teachers' Retirenent System (TRS)
increases was referred to the [full commttee of the] House
Special Committee on Education. Representative Ogg said that it
was the consensus of the subcommttee to deal with PERS and TRS

[funding] as a separate issue. At one point it was believed
that PERS and TRS should be included in the formula funding
[bill]; however, in Jlooking at the nunbers it became a

differentiation [issue] between the actual costs under the TRS
and PERS prograns and fornula funding. The subconm ttee decided
to deal only with fornmula funding, he clarified.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked the nenbers to |ook at HB 471 which is
the vehicle the subcommttee believes best addresses [educati on]
funding for FY 05. The nunber in the bill reflects an increase
of $95. He added that the subcommttee does not reconmend that
nunber based on testinony taken and a |lot of discussion.
Representative (Oyg told the nenbers that the anmount the
subconm ttee reconmends is an increase of $210, to the total of
$4, 379. The subcomm ttee recommends an anmendnent be made to
reflect those figures, he said.

Number 0317

REPRESENTATI VE OGG recommended another anmendnent which would
change the wording on page 1, line 6, where the words "begi nning
on July 1, 2005," would be inserted after the words "on July 1
of each year," he said.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG expl ained that the subcommttee cane up with
the $210 figure based on testinony given [during subconmttee
heari ngs] . The subcommttee used the figure provided by the
Superi ntendent of the Anchorage School District who offered that
a $388 increase would nmake the Anchorage School District whole.
The testinmony from around the state cane in very close to that
figure, he added. Some a little less, and very few were a
little nore, but nothing over $400. The anount each school
district will get is based on their actual costs, he said. The
way the subcomittee arrived at the $210 increase was by funding
the PER [and TRS] requirenent through a separate bill. The
anount given to the subcommttee by the Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnent for [TRS and PERS] funding was
$35, 000, 000, which would equal $178 from that $388 [figure

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 5- February 17, 2004



provided by the Anchorage School District], giving the anount
for education funding of $210. Representative (Ogg thanked the
ot her menbers of the subconmmttee saying that it was not an easy
t ask.

Nunber 0460

CHAIR GATTO told the nenbers that there will be anmendnents to
the bill which wll require a new fiscal note from the
departnment. It will be provided by next Thursday's neeting, he
sai d.

Nunber 0523

REPRESENTATI VE OGG noved to have HB 471, 23-LS1645\D, before the
commttee as the working docunent. There being no objection, HB
471, version D, was before the House Special Conmittee on
Educat i on.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG noved to anmend HB 471 as follows [adopted as
Amendnent 1] :

On page 1, line 6
Del ete "$4, 263"
| nsert "$4, 379"

There being no objection, Arendnent 1 was adopt ed.

CHAIR GATTO reiterated Representative Ogg's comments that this

bill reflects a $210 increase [in education funding]. He told
the nmenbers it is inportant to note that this bill does not
address the TRS and PERS shortfall, so another bill wll cone
before the commttee to deal with that issue. He said that it

is his understanding that [the figure for education funding]
plus the bill that will handle the PERS and TRS increase is the
figure which was given to [the conmttee] as that which was
spent on education in FY 04. He told the nenbers that nost of
the school districts are saying that if funding is provided at
this level it would be satisfactory and the districts will not
be faced with the drastic cuts that have been proposed.

Number 0702
REPRESENTATI VE OGG noved Anendnent 2 as foll ows:

On page 1, line 6
After the word "year,"

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 6- February 17, 2004



I nsert the words "beginning July 1, 2005,"

CHAI R GATTO pointed out that the budget being proposed is the
2005 budget. If this amendnent were effective July 1, 2005,
then there would be an increase in the fornula plus the
per cent age i ncrease. He asked M. Jeans to clarify [the inpact
of Amendnent 2].

Nunber 0764

EDDI E JEANS, Finance Manager, School Finance and Facilities
Secti on, Depar t ment of Education and Early Devel opnent,
testified on HB 471 and answered questions from the commttee.
He explained that by changing the date to July 1, 2005 [the
| egi sl ation] would effect the 2006 school vyear.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG commented that the date he is inserting is
not the effective date [of the law]. He clarified that this
change would nean that the 2 percent increase would not take
effect until the 2006 budget.

Number 0819

CHAI R GATTO asked if there were any objections to Anendnent 2.
There being no objection, Arendnent 2 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA advi sed the nenbers that a third anendnent
is being copied for the commttee's consideration. He added
that he will provide the mnority's report on the subcommittee
at the same tine [that he presents his amendnent].

Nunmber 0893

JOHN  ALCANTRA, Gover nnent Rel ations Director, NEA- Al aska,
testified on HB 471. He told the nenbers that he represents
al nost 13,000 nenbers on NEA- Al aska. M. Alcantra thanked the
commttee for their efforts, particularly for those anendnents
that brought education funding up to $4,379. He told the
commttee it is inportant to note that revenue sources that were
published two nonths ago for the Constitutional Budget Reserve
(CBR) draw for the current fiscal year was |ess than half that
whi ch was forecasted. It came in at $195.7 nillion, |eaving
$204.3 mllion in abeyance of the $400 mllion that had been
di scussed for a CBR draw, he said. M. Alcantra stated that he
understands that the $35.8 nillion in TRS and PERS shortfall
wll be dealt with in a different bill. He reiterated his
appreciation to the conmttee for their efforts, but added that

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -7- February 17, 2004



he concurs wth other legislators' statenents that this
[ fundi ng] does not address the past |osses through inflation and
it will not address the adequate funding issues in the future.

Nunmber 1180

RON  RUCKER, Presi dent, Classified Enpl oyees  Associ ati on,
testified on HB 471. He explained that the O assified Enployees
Association's nenbers are the support staff for the Matanuska-
Susitna School District. Wen he |ooked at the original version

of HB 471 he believed it to be totally inadequate. The
[amendnents] are a step in the right direction; however, it is
inportant to note that this increase still does not nake the

district whole, he said. M. Rucker comented that he's conme up
with some quick nunbers which reflects that the district wll
have a $2 million shortfall. He said he believes that will be
the case even with separate funding for the PERS/ TRS shortfall
At this rate the public school system wll not be around very
| ong, he conmented. He said that the district is no |onger
cutting fat or neat; it is cutting the bone that supports public
educat i on. M. Rucker summarized his coments by saying that
education needs to be funded adequately because education [of
the youth] is the future of this state.

Number 1167

CHAI R GATTO asked M. Rucker to provide him with a nane of an
i ndi vidual who can confirm that the WMtanuska-Susitna Schoo
District will have a $2 mllion shortfall.

MR. RUCKER responded that he did a rough estimate; based on the
$8 mllion in cuts M. Doyle [Chief School Adm nistrator,
Mat anuska- Susi t na Borough School District] said there would be.
He said that if [there were originally] $8 mllion in cuts, of
that $8 million, $3 mllion is for PERS and TRS, that |eaves $5

mllion [in cuts] on the table. Roughly 14,000 students tines a
$210 increase [in base student allocations] would nean an
increase of approximately $2.9 mllion. That |eaves [the
district] approximately $2 mnmillion short of the $5 mllion
shortfall, he said. The increase does not make this district
whol e, he stated. He pointed out that the district does not
have the option of <contributing additional |ocal noney that

Anchorage or other communities have because the borough assenbly
is currently funding to the maxi mum anount [allowable by |aw].
He comented that this has been the case for a nunber of years.
There is nowhere else to go but to cut prograns and raise fees
to residents and students.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 8- February 17, 2004



CHAIR GATTO asked M. Rucker if he is aware of the funding
formula and how that works with the base student allocation. He
asked M. Jeans to comrent on the inpact of the base student
al | ocati on.

Nunber 1293
MR. JEANS responded that as Chair Gatto pointed out, there are a

nunber of adjustnents that occur in the foundation program
There is an adjustnent for school size, district cost factors,

and 20 percent [ addi tional ] funding for speci al needs
[ student s]. The nunbers w il be higher than a straight per
student times a dollar anpbunt. He summarized that there will be

a different nunber on the fiscal note going to Miutanuska-Susitna
Bor ough School District than the nunber M. Rucker nentioned.

Number 1340

KRIS MOORE, Valley Voices for Children (VWFC), testified on HB
471. She offered her thanks for the work the commttee is
doing. She said she believes the anmendnents show that the state
is noving in the right direction. She told the nenbers that
WFC would be happy to help in seeing that this |egislation
passes. She said that she understands that [a separate bill

addressing] the TRS and PERS funding issue will be comng to the
commttee; however, she does not see this as an education
funding i ssue, but a revenue issue.

Number 1453

CHAI R GATTO announced for the record that Representative WIf
j oi ned the neeting sone tinme ago.

Nunber 1474

JENNI E HAMMOND testified in support of the amendnents to HB 471.
She told the conmittee that last night she attended a work
session on the budget by the Kenai Peninsula School District.
She warned that this increase wll still not fully fund
education in the Kenai Peninsula School D strict. The district
is looking at reducing special education, she said. M. Hamond
asked if the commttee would create a task force for special
education to |l ook at the issue. She al so asked the nenbers to
| ook at the idea of giving tax cuts on gas to conpanies that
deal with the district. That m ght ensure that the conpanies do
not pass the additional costs to the district, she said.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 9- February 17, 2004



Nunmber 1565

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Ms. Hammond if she recalls what base
student allocation figure was used at those neetings.

M5. HAMMOND responded that the figure used in the neeting to
adequately fund education was $4,570 for FY 04.

Nunmber 1605
REPRESENTATI VE GARA noted that both Kenai and WMatanuska- Susitna

testifiers have said that roughly $4,570 would be necessary to
adequately fund to FY 04 [level], and ensure that no additiona

teachers would be fired. It is inportant to note that [the
i ncreased] funding does not make up for all the teachers who
were fired the year before. Representative Gara noted that

Kenai said that going into this year it was necessary to |ayoff
10 percent of their teachers. The $4,570 would [still] |eave
Kenai at the point where it has |ost 10 percent of the teachers.
He said the point is well taken that this increase does not make
di stricts whole.

Nunber 1666

MELODY DQUGLAS, Chief Financial Oficer, Kenai Peninsula School
District, testified in support of HB 471. She echoed the
appreci ation expressed by others in anmending HB 471 to include
i ncreases in education funding. Ms. Douglas said that this is

novenent in the right direction. She said she realizes that the
PERS and TRS funding is not included, but the way she cal cul ates
this, the figure will come in around $4,557, which would [still]
| eave the district $13 off the base unit for what would hold the
district to the FY 04 standards. M. Douglas commented that she
really appreciates the l|language for the 2 percent increase in
funding for next year; however, she said she is very concerned

that the cost of inflation may exceed that [anmount]. She
concluded her testinony by offering to assist the nenbers in any
way possible as the bill proceeds through the |Ilegislative
process.

Nunmber 1744

ANDI STORY, Board Menber, Juneau School District, testified in
support of HB 471. She told the nenbers that she is the parent
of three children in the Juneau School District. M. Story told
the menbers that her famly has been in Alaska for 17 years, but

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -10- February 17, 2004



when her daughter was small, they lived in San D ego and had the
opportunity to nove back to Juneau to work on their business.
When her first daughter started kindergarten in 1990, she was
one of 21 students in the class; when her second daughter
started, she was in a class of 29. It is inportant to
understand that as the education system fails to provide a
quality education, it is nmore difficult to attract people to
Al aska. She said she does appreciate the work of the commttee.
Ms. Story comented that in the work session she is attending

tonight there wll be discussions which will focus on what to
cut .
Nunber 1877

CHAI R GATTO announced that HB 471 would be held until Thursday's
nmeet i ng.
The comm ttee took an at-ease from11:36 a.m to 11:37 a.m

HB 471-1 NCREASE AMI' OF BASE STUDENT ALLOCATI ON

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HB 477]

CHAIR GATTO announced that the commttee would return to
di scussi ons about HB 471. He told the nenbers that
Representative Gara would provide a mnority report on the
subconm ttee on education funding.

Number 1907

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if the chair wshes to take up
Amendnent 3 t oday.

CHAIR GATTO responded that he would I|ike to hold off on
Amendnent 3 until Thursday.

Number 1977

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that he appreciates all the efforts of
the subcomm ttee nmenbers and those who took the tinme to testify.
The bill before the nenbers goes a long way to repair the damage
to the schools over the last many years, he said. Comments that
were heard today from the WMatanuska-Susitna Borough Schoo

District and testinony heard in subconmttee actually went
further than what the bill offers. For exanple, Kenai Peninsula
School District indicated that it would need a base student
allocation of $4,570, if the PER and TRS was rolled into the
[ base student allocation], just to be held harmess to |ast

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -11- February 17, 2004



year's level, he said. Mat anuska- Susi tna Borough School
District needed the sanme anount of noney to be at the sane |evel

as |last year, he added. Representative Gara rem nded the
nmenbers that the school districts were very clear that |ast year
education funding was cut and the funding fell behind on
inflation [proofing]. These actions caused severe inpacts which
required the districts to layoff substantial nunbers  of
t eachers. Representative Gara pointed out that HB 471 only

mtigates this year's damage and does nothing to repair the
damage from |l ast year's [budget cuts].

Nunber 2010

REPRESENTATI VE GARA told the nmenbers that he and Representative
Kapsner have filed HB 477 in an attenpt to go the second step in
repairing sone of last year's damage. As the nenbers wll
recall, he said, last year the legislature elimnated community
schools funding, cut what goes into pupil transportation, cut
the program that hel ped school districts pay for the extra costs
of educating foster children, and cut the kindergarten program
for four-year olds. Representative Gara said he believes it is
time to start repairing the damage. He explained that his plan
would include an increase in the base student allocation to
$4, 600 per student, which would include rolling the PERS and TRS
anount [into the bill]. The reason that is inportant is that
the amount then becones part of the base student allocation and
it wll not be necessary to go over the PERS and TRS issue again
next year. The nunbers are not that far off, he comrented, the
nunber in HB 477 recomends is $4,600, while the nunber the
subcommittee is recomending is the equivalent of $4,557 per
st udent . Representative Gara pointed out that the difference is
$8 million and 160 teachers. He summarized that for not a |ot
nore noney [the legislature] could go a long way to solve this

pr obl em Representative Gara applauded the subcommttee's
action in addressing inflation by increasing the base student
allocation into the future by 2 percent annually. He pointed

out that inflation may exceed 2 percent so a better way of
addressing this issue would be to acknow edge the danage that
has taken place over the |last decade, and to repair that danmage
into the future by increases to the base student allocation with

inflation [proofing], plus another 2 percent until class sizes
cone down to a level that is acceptable. Representative Gara
reiterated his appreciation for the work the conmttee did and
acknow edged that [HB 471] is a good bill, but noted that there

is much to be done to repair past damage [to public education].

Number 2162

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -12- February 17, 2004



CHAIR GATTO commented that Representative Gara's reference to
the funding being "not that far off" is nusic to his ears,
because there have been many tinmes that the nenbers have been
very far apart.

[HB 471 was held in conmttee.]

HB 338- ENTRY | NTO SCHOCL

Number 2175

CHAI R GATTO announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 338, "An Act relating to attendance at public
school ; and providing for an effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE  LESI L McGUI RE, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
testified as the sponsor of HB 338. She told the nenbers that
HB 338 is a sinple bill which is being introduced to help
address a problem a constituent brought to her attention and the
Department of Education and Early Developnent wth a mnor
techni cal change. The bill does two things, she said

Currently state law stipulates that a child under school age may
be admtted only by a vote of the entire school board. This |aw
makes the process of admtting an under age child cunbersone.

She explained that this bill would not change anything in the
statutes of standards by which admttance into school s
permtted. The law would still require that a child can
denonstrate  "m ninum standards prescri bed by the Dboard
evidencing that the <child has the nental, physical, and
enotional capacity...", she added. This bill would provide that

the chief school adm nistrator can make that decision, thereby
relieving the adm nistrative burden.

Nunber 2267

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE expl ained that the next change the bill
would inplenent is the date by which <children nmay enter
ki nder gart en. This bill provides that children who reach the
age of five years old before Septenber 1st may be enrolled in
ki nder gart en. Currently the law provides an August 15 cutoff
dat e. Representative M@iire commented that what this change
does is provide for Alaska to keep pace with changes occurring
in the rest of the United States. There are 19 other states
that use Septenber 1st as the cutoff date. Part of the reason
for this change is that there are a lot of mlitary famlies who
have conme into Al aska and the different cutoff date is confusing

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -13- February 17, 2004



for them Representative MQ@iire pointed out that the fiscal
note 1is indetermnant because it is inpossible for the
Department of Education and Early Developnment to predict [the
change in the nunber of] students. There may be a little bit of
a fiscal note, she added.

Nunber 2354

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE asked the nenbers to consider whether or
not Alaska should join eight other states in having the
conpul sory age be five years old. She suggested it is sonething
to think about, but does not want it to be an issue that would
hold up the bill's [novenent from commttee]. She said she
thought this would be particularly helpful to |ower incone
famlies [who have day care issues].

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE shared a personal experience where her
brother, who is a traumatic brain injury survivor, has two
children with soneone with whom he is not married. These are
two beautiful children, she stated. One of the children, Zoé,
turned five years of age, and the nentality in sone |owincone
famlies, is that it is not inportant to take your children to
school wuntil it is required by state law. They live in Russian
Jack and her brother spent a lot time driving [his daughter]
across town to get her to school when he could. However, the
child's nother did not feel conpelled [to get her to school].
Now she is six years old and in school every day. There are
checks and bal ances once school attendance becones conpul sory,
she said. A child growng up in a mddle to upper class famly
[is in an environnent where] the inpetus is to be educated.
There is a pressure that is built in. These are the people who
want the start date to be pushed forward so that when their
child turns five [years of age] on August 17, they can start
school and get going, so there is no need to be concerned for
t hose kids, she said. Representative MQuire pondered whether
it mght be helpful to create nore of an inpetus for other
famlies that m ght not have that built in enphasis.

Number 2477

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO responded that he has sonme concerns about
[requiring] a five-year old [to attend school]. He said that
his comments may be viewed as a sexist, but he does not believe
boys should start school earlier than six [years old]. He told
the nenbers that there are good reasons for that opinion because
the biological rate of maturity [for boys is different than
girls]. It may be okay for girls, and there may be i ndividual

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -14- February 17, 2004



differences. Chair Gatto stated that he has a problem with the
word "conpul sory. " To provide that it be an elective option
woul d be tolerable, he said. He told the commttee he would
like to look at the states that have conpul sory attendance at
five years of age and see what the end result is.

Nunmber 2535

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE asked the nmenbers to |look at Patricia
MRae's letter. She is the Executive Director of El enentary
Educati on and supports the idea of changing the entry date of
children starting kindergarten to Septenber 1st. Representati ve
McGQuire sunmarized her coments by saying that there has not
been any opposition to this bill

Number 2575

CHAI R GATTO asked if superintendents are considered a subsection
under school adm nistrators.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE responded that it is her wunderstanding
that the |anguage is interchangeabl e.

CHAI R GATTO commented that there is a letter of support for HB
338 from Robert Doyle, the Chief School Adm nistrator from the
Mat anuska- Susi t na Borough School District.

CHAI R GATTO asked for [definitive] clarification on the |anguage
[related to superintendents and school adm nistrators].

Nunber 2617

HEATH HI LYARD, Staff to Representative Lesil MQiire, Al aska
State Legislature, answered questions from the nenbers on HB
338. M. Hilyard responded that Legislative Legal and Research
Services drafted the language and it is his understanding that
this is the existing statutory |anguage. He enphasized that the
sponsor did not ask for any specific change in the | anguage.

Nunber 2629

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said for the record that it is inmportant to
note that there is a spectrum of [cutoff] dates. Al aska has an
August 15th date, while some schools in other states have its
[cutoff] at Cctober 16th. QG her than conformty to other
states' cutoff dates, he asked if there is a specific reason for
sel ecting Septenber 1st.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -15- February 17, 2004



REPRESENTATIVE MGJURE replied that the min reason for
selecting Septenber 1st is to conmply with the md-range of
st at es. A few states do have Cctober 16th as the cutoff date,
she comented, but not that many [states]. Representati ve
McCGuire told nenbers that she believes the Septenber 1st date as
the least controversial and nost predom nant date [used by

stat es]. However, she said, she would be anenable to an
anendnent to change the date. She enphasi zed that her primary
purpose in introducing this bill is to get kids into school as

soon as possi bl e.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG comrented that he has no problem with the
dat e. He agreed with Representative MQ@iire that the earlier
that children get into school the better.

Number 2697

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON shared that her daughter's birthday is
Septenber 30th and the state that she lived in [at the time of
her entry into kindergarten] required children to be five years
old by Septenber 30th, so she just made it in. There was the
consideration that if her daughter was in school there would not
be the expense of day care. To this day, she said, she w shes
that she had held her out another year because she was the very
youngest person in her class. Representative WIson said her
daughter experienced problens along the way and she believes
that if she had been held out another year [those problens m ght
have been avoi ded].

Nunber 2759

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON sunmarized that while she wunderstands
Representative McQuire's purpose in sponsoring the bill, she has
m xed feelings about it because of those experiences. She
stated that she will not vote against the bill

CHAIR GATTO pointed out that the |anguage does say, "may"
[rather than shall].

REPRESENTATIVE McGU RE told the commttee that she appreciates

Representative WIson's conments. She reiterated Chair Gatto's
point that the |anguage in the bill is clearly a "may" [option],
not a "shall" [requirenent].

Nunmber 2806

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -16- February 17, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE WOLF agreed that the | anguage which keeps the age
of entrance into school as an option [not a requirenent] is
good. He shared that both of his children were kept out of
school until the age of six because he and his wife felt it was
nost appropriate for their children. He said that while he wll
not vote against the bill, he will be giving no recomrendati on
[on the bill].

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE commented that there are sone states that
do not have a conpul sory start date until the age of eight years
ol d. There is an interesting balance between the two
[requirenments], she added.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said that this choice should be a persona
one. He shared that he has a special needs child that is now 23
years ol d, who started school at the age of t hree.
Representative WIlf told the commttee that he also has two
small children who went through Head Start. One daughter is an
"A" student who is reading at 4th grade level while in 2nd
gr ade. He reiterated that both of the younger children did not
start school until six years of age.

Nunber 2897

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked what is the conpul sory start [age] for
first grade.

Nunmber 2933

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE replied that she believes [the conpul sory
start age] is six years of age.

MR. HI LYARD confirmed that the nmenbers are |ooking at version H
of the bill

REPRESENTATI VE GARA responded that he is | ooking at version D.

MR. H LYARD pointed to version H that nmakes a change for a
conpul sory date for [entrance] to first grade, which now says
August 15th for the year the child turns six [years old], but
wi || change to Septenber 1st.

[While no notion was made to adopt version H it was treated as
t he wor ki ng docunent. ]

TAPE 04-10, SIDE B

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -17- February 17, 2004



Nunmber 2955

REPRESENTATIVE GARA followed up on a comment made by
Representative Ogg that the date chosen should be the "ideal
date.” He said that perhaps Septenber 1st is the ideal date, or
maybe it should be Cctober 16th, which would allow for as many
[children] as possible to enter school early. He asked what
Representative McCQuire's views are on putting the date back to
Oct ober 16th. It would still be an option for people to wait an
extra year if they chose to.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE responded that she |ooked at materials
from National Conference of State Legislatures (NCSL) and
sonmething from Dr. Deborah Stipek from Stanford University. She
said she does not have any problem changing the date to QOctober
16th because there is still a "may" option in the bill. She
said that Representative WIson's conment about the high cost of
child care being an issue, |eads her to consider that noving the
date back m ght benefit financially strapped fam|lies.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA told the nenbers that he would not offer an
anendnent, but asked Representative MQiire to think about this
question as the bill goes through the process. Representati ve
Gara said that the earlier adm ssion date is attractive to him
because the funds are not available to fully fund Head Start,
and maybe this bill would help a nonths worth of kids get into
school when it may not be ot herw se possible.

Nunber 2815

CHAIR GATTO pointed out that a great reference on this issue
woul d be school nurses who have screened kids over and over

agai n. Oten tines a parent will believe that their child is
gifted and should be entered into school at the age of 4,
however, once the nurse has screened the child, it will be found

that the child really does not qualify for early entrance into
school .

Nunber 2777

REPRESENTATIVE MGJURE told the nenbers, in followup to
Representative Gara's comment, that she will contact a couple of
ki ndergarten teachers in her district to get their views on the
i ssue.

Nunber 2757

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 18- February 17, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER posed a hypothetical exanple where the
cutoff date is October 16th, and a child s birthday is on
[ Cctober] 14th. If that child is in a lowincone famly which
qualifies for a federal subsidy for day care, if the famly
decides not to place the child in kindergarten would this change
[in law] disqualify the famly from getting the federal subsidy
[for day care assistance], she asked.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE responded that she does not know.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON told the nenber that at this tine [the
federal governnent] does not | ook at that issue [wth respect to
federal ly subsidized day care]. She commented that the idea of
pushing the date back too far should be viewed with caution
because the reality is that teachers have nore students in their
cl assroons than in the past. The nore immture the children in
the classroom are, the nore difficult for the other children to
| earn, and the teachers' to teach, she said.

CHAI R GATTO commented that it would be especially difficult if a
child who qualifies is not yet potty trained.

Nunber 2627

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that the letter [dated January 21,
2004, from Robert Doyle, Chief School Adm nistrator, Matanuska-
Susitna Borough School District] points out that the Septenber
1st school cutoff date is nore closely aligned wth the
begi nni ng of the school year.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE replied that's correct.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON told the nenmbers that he is concerned with
two portions of the bill

On page 1, lines 4 and 5

A child who is six year of age on or before Septenber
1 [AUGUST 15] followng the beginning of the school
year,

On page 2, line 3

[A] child who is five year of age on or before
Sept enber 1 [AUGUST 15] follow ng the beginning of the
school year...

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that [the |anguage could be a
probl em because] some districts nmay start school bef ore

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -19- February 17, 2004



Septenber 1st. Representative Seaton said he is not sure of the
effect of these definitional [changes].

REPRESENTATIVE MGU RE comented that Representative Seaton

points out a need for an anmendnent. She said that when drafting
the bill, the language was just fitted into existing statute.
She suggested striking the words "followng the beginning of a
school year"” [on page 1, line 5 and again on page 2, lines 4 and
5.] She said that she believes the existing |anguage in the
bill could cause confusion. The Anchorage School District is

noving toward starting school after Labor Day, but if rural
parts of Alaska are starting sooner, that could serve as a
source of confusion.

Nunber 2518
CHAIR GATTO agreed with Representative MGQuire's point. For
exanple, a parent could enroll a child in Bethel prior to

Septenber 1st for the sole purpose of defeating the intent of
the | egislation. Then |l ater nove to Anchorage on Septenber 2nd
as a transfer and then say the child is already enroll ed.

MR. HI LYARD pointed out that is precisely one of the situations
that the bill would renedy. There are cases where people enrol
their children in other states, for a week or less for the sole
purpose of circunventing the law, he said. The new date is nore
of a national standard so individuals do not feel the need to do
t hat, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the departnent sees a problem
with an anendnent which would strike the phrases "follow ng the
begi nning of the school year".

Nunber 2469

KEVI N SWEENEY, Legislative Liaison, Ofice of the Comm ssioner
Depart nent of Education and Early Devel opnent, answer ed
guestions from the nenbers on HB 338. In response to

Representative Seaton's question he replied that he would | ook
into it and get back to the committee.

Number 2460
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON conmented that she is shocked that there
are parents who have enough noney to go to another state, enrol

their child [in school], and then cone back to Al aska, just so
the child could go to school that year

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 20- February 17, 2004



Number 2440

REPRESENTATI VE MGUI RE responded that what 1is really being
referred to is mlitary famlies who are already living in the
| ower 48 states and are preparing to nove to Al aska. She
cormented that it is possible that a famly could be visiting
grandparents sonmewhere and enroll the child out of state.

MR. SWEENEY spoke to the discussed anendnent [where the | anguage
"followi ng the beginning of the school year"” would be deleted].
He told the nenbers that the |anguage woul d not have any i npact
because the beginning of the school year officially, according
to statute, begins July 1st. The change in |anguage woul d not
be a problem he reiterated.

CHAIR GATTO noted for the record that the fiscal note is in
determinant at this tine.

Nunmber 2384

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report CSHB 338, 23-LS1258\H,
M schel , 1/ 21/ 04, out of committee W th i ndi vi dual
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being

no objection, CSHB 338(EDU) was reported out of the House
Speci al Conm ttee on Educati on.

HB 353-JURY DUTY EXEMPTI ON FOR CERTAI N TEACHERS

Number 2350

CHAI R GATTO announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 353, "An Act relating to jury duty; and anending
Rul e 15(k), Al aska Rules of Admi nistration."”

Number 2353

REPRESENTATI VE MARY KAPSNER, Al aska State Legislature, testified
as the sponsor of HB 353. She expl ained that HB 353 precludes
teachers from having to serve as part of a jury pool if the
school where they work is not neeting adequate yearly progress
(AYP) . It has been a concern over the years, particularly in
rural Al aska, but the concern is greater with the inplenentation
of the No Child Left Behind Act and the exit exanms that seniors

will be required to pass, she added. For exanple, the Lower
Kuskokwi m School District is in the 4th Judicial Court, but the
Bet hel Court has a lot of pressure on it, she said. The jury

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -21- February 17, 2004



pool includes a 30-mle radius of Bethel which in turn puts a
lot of pressure on the teachers in nmany of the outlying
villages. She pointed out that the jury is not really a jury of
their peers, because nost of the teachers cone from outside and
are new to the region. Another problemis that there is a major
shortage of substitute teachers in the region. This is
especially true in villages. There just aren't a |lot of
certified teachers hanging around the villages waiting to be
called in case a teacher is sick or has been called for jury
duty, she commented. Representative Kapsner referred to e-nmails
that she has received from teachers from the Lower Kuskokw m
School District who discuss these particular [problens] and how
that effects the classroons.

Nunber 2247

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER shared an e-nmail from one constituent,
Felecia Giffith-Kl even, who said that when a teacher is out the
best that can be done is to bring in a high school graduate who
is not otherw se enployed. Representative Kapsner told the
menbers that students are the ones who suffer from the
interruption of their |earning because sonetines teachers do not
have tinme to prepare lesson plans for the substitute teacher
Anot her facet of the issue is that during the w nter nonths,
pl anes can only fly during daylight hours so as a result it is
often not possible for the teachers to fly back before the
school day ends.

Nunber 2171

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER added that one concern that was expressed
is what [other job classification] is next. Wul d pol i cenen,
firemen, or Village Public Safety Oficers (VPSGCs) be exenpted
from serving on jury duty. She pointed out that there is such
stress on the education system right now that it is a real

hardship to be pulling teachers out. For exanple, one school
has 11 teachers and 5 were called out for jury duty which can
last as long as 3 nonths, she said. Representati ve Kapsner

rel ayed that the Lower Kuskokwi m School District said that from
Sept enber 1st through Decenber 15th of 2003, payroll records
show a total of 107.5 days that teachers were out of the
cl assroom performng jury duty. This is a significant toll on a
school system she added.

Nunber 2136

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -22- February 17, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON agreed wth Representative Kapsner on the
[ seriousness of the problem. She shared that in the last two
years she has been called to jury duty every three nonths.
Representative WIlson said it is inportant to think about what
woul d be best for Kkids. She stated that this bill is best for
Ki ds.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER explained that the requirenents for
substitute teachers is al nost non-existent. Only a high schoo

di ploma is needed now, she conmmented. When she went to schoo

in the Lower Kuskokwi m School District nost of the substitute
teachers were cab drivers because it would be possible for them
to nake nore noney [substitute teaching] than driving cab,
Representati ve Kapsner said. Anot her substitute teacher that
she recalls was the wife of the mnister who had English as her
second | anguage. There was no effort to teach, she just brought
her knitting and did babysitting.

CHAI R GATTO asked what the average nunber of teachers is in the
27 villages that are listed.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER replied that there probably would be at
| east two teachers in each village. In Platinum for exanple,
she told the nenbers that her dad taught every grade and every
subject in high school and another teacher taught every grade
and subject in elenentary school. A larger village could have
10 or 11 teachers.

CHAI R GATTO said that an inportant point to be nmade is that in a
small village with two teachers, if one is gone [for jury duty],
then half the teachers are gone, possibly for three nonths. He
asked the nenbers to inmagine any district that said half their
teachers are gone. Chair Gatto told the nenbers that he
supports this | egislation.

Number 2013

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON expl ained that nany of the schools in the
small villages are not on the list of those who failed to nake
adequate yearly progress because [of privacy concerns] in that
the school is so small a child could be identified. She
guesti oned whether the | anguage should be changed in a way that
will ensure that these small schools are considered under this
| egi sl ati on. Representative WIlson told the nenbers she
supports this bill

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -23- February 17, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER agreed wth Representative WIlson's
poi nt . She noted that Eddie Jeans is indicating his agreenent
with Representative WIson's suggestion as well.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG expressed his concern with Representative
Kapsner statenents about a particular area of the state, with a
particul ar circunstance. He pointed out that during testinony
taken last fall with respect to schools that are not making AYP,
it was found that nmetropolitan schools were found to be the ones

wth the nore serious problens. Representative Ogg questioned
whether there could be a different way of approaching this
pr obl em He suggested that the |anguage would say sonething
like, "jury duty would not be required if not on the road system
connected to the court house.” He told the nenbers that he
believes that would be a better approach than affecting a whole
class of teachers in the state of Al aska. Representative Ogg

stated that he feels strongly that no mtter what soneone's
profession is, hel/she should have an opportunity to serve on
juries. That is what nakes the jury system work.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER sai d she appreci ates Representative Qgg's
concerns. She offered to list the schools in Anchorage that are
not neeting adequate yearly progress.

CHAI R GATTO asked if that is pertinent.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER replied that she believes it is because
these are schools that are on the road system within driving
di stance of the [court house], but said she does not believe
that their substitute teacher pool is any nore qualified to neet
the concerns of AYP [than those in small conmmunities].

CHAI R GATTO comented that this is public information and asked
Represent ati ve Kapsner to proceed.

Number 1818

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER |isted the follow ng schools in Anchorage
that are not neeting AYP: Bowran El enentary, Canpbell
El enent ary, Centr al M ddl e School of Sci ence, Chi nook

El emrentary, Chugiak Elenentary, Chugiak H gh School, dark
M ddle School, College Gate Elenentary, and Creekside Park
El enentary. There are probably 50 schools in Anchorage that are
not neeting AYP, she stated. Representative Kapsner told the
menbers that she believes the kids in Fairview deserve to have a
teacher there to teach them just as nuch as the [kids in]
Nunapi t chuk.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 24- February 17, 2004



Number 1801

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that he agrees with the approach of the

bill, and in fact, would be alarned if the bill said that it
only applies to certain parts of the state. He said he believes
it is inportant to keep this bill non-discrimnatory.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON told the nenbers that he believes that AYP
is inmportant, and there should not be a gap in schools being
identified because of the nunmber of students. He said he woul d
like to see this bill anmended to address both issues.

CHAI R GATTO comrented that there is quite a bit of tinme when
school is not in session, and asked if that is addressed in the
bill.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER responded that probably 98 percent of the
teachers | eave during the sunmer

CHAIR GATTO said he is wunfamliar wth the process of

identifying persons for jury duty. For instance, couldn't a
teacher serve on jury duty elsewhere in the state [during sumer
nont hs when school is not in session]. He asked if jury duty is

assigned by where a person resides.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER replied that persons get called for jury
duty depending on where he/she lists [their permanent] address
for the permanent fund dividend check. In response to
Representative Ogg's earlier comments, she said the point is
that "highly qualified" teachers should not be taken out of the
cl assroom Substitute teachers do not qualify as highly
qgqual i fied teachers, she added.

Nunmber 1613

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON expl ained that when a person is called to
jury duty, there is adequate advance notice so the individual
can expl ain his/her circunstances.

Number 1600

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON of fered t he fol |l ow ng concept ual
anendnent :

On page 1, line 7
After the word "progress”

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -25- February 17, 2004



Insert the words "or a school that was exenpt from
classification."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained that this additional |anguage
woul d ensure the inclusion of schools that failed to neet AYP or
those that were of such a size that they were exenpt from
classification.

REPRESENTATI VE = KAPSNER responded that she believes this
amendnent needs to be in witing and have the departnent and the

[ Legi slative Legal and Research  Servi ces] | ook at it.
Representative Kapsner pointed out that once AYP is net, this
| egi slation would be a noot. At that point, teachers would not

be exenpt [fromjury duty], she said.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said that her primary concern is what is
best for Kkids. In schools where there are no highly qualified
substitute teachers to help the kids get the education that is
needed, she told the nenbers she believes the teacher should be

in the classroom as nuch as possible. Representative WI son
questioned how the bill could be changed to address those
concerns. In summary she said that what is best for kids is for

the teacher to stay in the classroom

REPRESENTATI VE OGG conmented that he has heard testinony that
the effort to have "highly qualified" teachers in rural areas is
very difficult. He said he believes this bill is too broad and
would be nore confortable with a bill that just addresses a
specific issue. For instance, if the court systemin Bethel is
bringing in people to serve on jury duty fromvillages that are
not on the road system that jury pool would be difficult to

fill. He suggested |anguage that would address teachers in
rural areas, not on a road system that are called to [serve on
jury duty] be exenpt. Representative (Ogg said that tying
exenption from jury duty to schools' <classification on AYP
appears to be too broad a stroke. He said he is unconfortable
with the way the bill is witten.

Nunber 1322

CHAIR GATTO asked if there is a perinmeter beyond which an
i ndi vi dual woul d not have to serve on jury duty.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER replied that in Bethel's case there is a
30-m | e radius. There are seven or eight villages within that
radius in the Bethel area. She explained that there are no
communities in the Bethel region that are |inked by roads. In

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 26- February 17, 2004



the winter it is possible to travel by ice road, but not a |ot
of people new to the region, such as teachers, have cars.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON told the nenbers that he does not believe
this is only a rural issue. 1In schools that failed to neet APY,
it is especially inportant that there is continuity of teachers
in the classroom He stated he does not care what the |ocation,
teachers should not be pulled out of classroons, especially in
schools that are not neeting AYP. This commttee's concern has
to be for the schools that are failing, not what the jury pool
is doing, he said. This bill wll probably go to the House
Judiciary Standing Commttee where the nenbers there may or nay
not like it. He enphasi zed the inportance of nenbers to focus
on the education of kids, and naking sure kids and schools have
every opportunity to succeed.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA pointed out that this bill has two nore
commttees of referrals where Representative Ogg's concerns
coul d be addressed. He asked if the sponsor would confer wth
the individual who has the question [before the next commttee
hears the bill], and asked that the bill be passed out of
committee today.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON commented that the next conmttee of
referral is the House Health, Education and Social Services
Standing Conmmttee, of which she 1is chair. She asked
Representative Kapsner to talk with the Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnment and others to address questions raised in

commttee [today] before the bill comes before the House Health,
Education and Social Services Standing Comittee. She said she
believes this is a good bill and has nerit.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON told the nmenbers that he will w thdraw his
concept ual anendnment if the sponsor wll wirk wth the
departnment to include the |anguage for consideration in the
House Health, Education and Social Services Standing Conmittee

In response to Representative Kapsner affirmative response,
Representative Seaton wit hdrew his conceptual anendnent.

Nunmber 1036

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noved to report HB 353, Version A out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, HB 353 was reported out
of the House Special Conmttee on Educati on.

HB 390- LENGITH OF SCHOCOL TERM

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -27- February 17, 2004



[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of SB 239.]

Nunber 0977

CHAI R GATTO announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 390, "An Act relating to the required nunber of
days in a school year."

CHAIR GATTO Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of HB 390, told
the nmenbers that if this bill could be spoken of in a single
word, it would be "flexibility." He told the nenbers that the
Anchorage Police Departnment went from a 40-hour week, using
five, eight-hour days, and noved to four, ten-hour days. It was
a change that was welcomed by the police and has been
successful . In looking at the schools, HB 390 allows school
districts to look at school terms in a nore flexible nmanner.
Chair Gatto told the nenbers that current |law requires 180 days
of school; however, iif approved by the Conm ssioner of the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent, school districts
woul d be allowed to adjust their school terns within statute to
neet the needs of their students, teachers, famlies, and
| ocat i on. He said that rather than focusing on the nunber of
days, the focus would be on the anmobunt of attendance. Recently,
an Anchorage charter school proposed a plan to the Anchorage

School Board for sonething less than 180 days. This plan was
approved in concept, but is now on hold pending the passage of
this legislation, he said. The increased flexibility provides

for a stronger focus on academc performance instead of just
accounting for seat tine.

Number 0835

CHAI R GATTO said that while allowing for a four-day week is not
the specific intent of HB 390, passage would provide for
meani ngful dialogue on this and other plans. This bill would
specifically effect boarding and residential students by
allowing them a flexible schedule. Year round schools could
al so be introduced, he remarked. This bill is supported by the
superintendents of the Anchorage School District and the
Mat anuska- Susi t na Borough School District.

Number 0833
REPRESENTATI VE OGG noved to report HB 390, 23-LS1522\ A out of

commttee with individual recommendations, and the acconpanying
fiscal notes.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 28- February 17, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON objected to the notion for purposes of
di scussi on.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON shared that her niece and niece's husband,

who are teachers in Colorado, work a four-day workweek. The
response from teachers and the admnistration has been very
positive. The district likes it because of the flexibility [in

hours] and it has been shown to save noney.

CHAIR GATTO pointed out that this bill does not nandate or
require anything, it only allows for flexibility. There have
been sone studies on the savings of a four-day school week and
t he savings have been shown to be nuch |less than anticipated

He renenbers from personal experience that when his son is

traveling with the basketball team there wll be a mssed
school day, usually Friday. He said that is what he believes is
behind sone of the drive for the bill. If a school is on the

road system they can travel early, or if it is necessary to
fly, it provides for a make up if the plane is late getting in.
There are many reasons the school districts would love this
flexibility, he coomented, but it is not a requirenent.

Number 0661

MR. SWEENEY told the nenbers that the Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnment testified on the senate version of this
bill. There were a couple of suggestions that could make the
bill a bit stronger, but over all the departnent agrees with the
intent of the bill in allowng sone flexibility in school
districts to look at innovative ideas in calendaring. There are
still some checks and balances in that the school board nust
approve the plan and the comm ssioner of the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnment nust al so approve the pl an.

MR. SWVEENEY referred to the new version of SB 239 [the conpani on
bill to HB 390, offered in the senate]. The departnent wanted
to have sone sort of m ninum proposed. The problem he said, is
that while it says the approxi nmate educational equivalent in a
180-day term it does not define that it has to be 180 days
worth of hours. The conm ssioner was concerned that there would
be a huge range of interpretations on the equivalent of 180 days
worth of education. M. Sweeney told the nenbers that the
departnment cane up with 144 days, because if a district went to
a four-day workweek schedule, four-fifths of 180 is 144 days.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -29- February 17, 2004



MR. SWEENEY conmmented that there was sonme confusion with respect
to school enployee wages as discussed in one section of the
bill. It was determned that the drafter who wote the bill for
the senate version thought that this bill dealt with contracts
and used | anguage to nake it nore uniform There was a | ot of
confusi on about that |anguage and the departnment did not know
how that inpacted current contracts and contract negotiations.
Upon looking at this point further, it was determined it would
be better to |leave that up to the [individual] contracts as they
are negotiated. He enphasized that the renpval of this |anguage
would not inpact the districts' ability to conme up wth
i nnovati ve schedul i ng pl ans.

Nunber 0436

CHAIR GATTO agreed with M. Sweeney's coments. He told the
menbers that he would support anending the bill to renove that
| anguage and have the bill's language agree with the senate
ver si on.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for clarification of the |anguage on
page 1, subsection (4)(A) of [SB 239, the senate version of HB
390], which reads as follows:

(A) the school board has submitted an acceptable plan

Number 0311

MR. SWEENEY replied that the way he and the conm ssioner
envision this working is that the school district would cone up

with a plan at the beginning of the school year. The district
woul d |ayout the new cal endar, which doesn't neet the 180-day
requi renent the district use to have, and show what will be done

to nmeet the sane education equivalent of the old school year
He pointed out that the school board would have to approve the
plan before it is sent to the conm ssioner, and the conm ssioner
woul d have to approve it as well.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that the |anguage in the senate
version does not reflect that the new cal endar would have to be
acceptable to the comm ssioner of [the Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnent].

MR. SWEENEY pointed to HB 390, page 2, lines 3 and 4, where it

says "the school board adopts a different school term for a
school if the comm ssioner finds that the school board..." He

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 30- February 17, 2004



summari zed that the school board nust submt a plan of no |ess
than 144 days, and the comm ssioner nust find that the students
are still going to get the equival ent of 180 days of education.

CHAI R GATTO told the nmenbers that he would entertain anmendnents
to HB 390 that would incorporate the changes suggested by the
Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent, and which were
made to the senate bill [SB 239].

Nunber 0203

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON clarified that the text in brackets on
page 2, lines 3 and 4 was del eted. She noved Anmendnent 1 as
fol |l ows:

Page 2, lines 3
After the words "school ternt
Insert "of not |ess than 144 days”
There bei ng no objection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved Anmendnent 2 which she explained

woul d allow for the conpletion of the previous sentence on |ine
4. The amendnent is as follows:

On page 2, line 5
Delete "(A"

[Due to technical difficulties, the follow ng was not taped but
was reconstructed fromthe recording secretary's |og notes.]

There being no objection, Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved Anendnent 3 as fol |l ows:
On page 2, delete lines 8 through 10

There bei ng no objection, Arendnent 3 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renoved hi s objection.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG nobved to report HB 390, 23-LS1522\A, as
anended, out of commttee wth individual recommendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB

390(EDU) was reported out of the House Special Conmttee on
Educati on.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -31- February 17, 2004



ADJ CQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on Education neeting was adjourned at 12:45
p. m

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -32- February 17, 2004



